
 
 
Bill Cullen MBA (ISM), BA(Hons) MRTPI 

Chief Executive 

 

 
Hinckley Hub • Rugby Road • Hinckley • Leicestershire • LE10 0FR 

Telephone 01455 238141 • MDX No 716429 • Fax 01455 251172 • www.hinckley-bosworth.gov.uk 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
To: Members of the Audit Committee 

 
 Cllr DS Cope (Chairman) 

Cllr A Pendlebury (Vice-Chairman) 
Cllr MA Cook 
Cllr REH Flemming 
Cllr L Hodgkins 
Cllr C Ladkin 
 

Cllr MR Lay 
Cllr RB Roberts 
Cllr BR Walker 
Cllr HG Williams 
Cllr P Williams 
 

 
Copy to all other Members of the Council 
 
(other recipients for information) 
 
Dear member, 
 
There will be a meeting of the AUDIT COMMITTEE in the De Montfort Suite, Hinckley Hub on 
WEDNESDAY, 19 JANUARY 2022 at 6.30 pm and your attendance is required. 
 
The agenda for the meeting is set out overleaf. 
 
Yours sincerely 
 

 
 
Rebecca Owen 
Democratic Services Manager 
 

Date: 11 January 2022 

Public Document Pack



 

 
Hinckley Hub • Rugby Road • Hinckley • Leicestershire • LE10 0FR 

Telephone 01455 238141 • MDX No 716429 • Fax 01455 251172 • www.hinckley-bosworth.gov.uk 
 

Fire Evacuation Procedures 
 

 On hearing the fire alarm, leave the building at once quickly and calmly by the nearest 
escape route (indicated by green signs). 

 

 There are two escape routes from the Council Chamber – at the side and rear. Leave 
via the door closest to you. 

 

 Proceed to Willowbank Road car park, accessed from Rugby Road then Willowbank 
Road. 

 

 Do not use the lifts. 
 

 Do not stop to collect belongings. 
 
 

Recording of meetings 
 

At HBBC we are open and transparent about how we make decisions. We allow recording, 
filming and photography at all public meetings including Council, the Executive and Planning 
Committee as long as doing so does not disturb or disrupt the proceedings. There may 
occasionally be some reports that are discussed in private session where legislation requires 
this to happen, but this is infrequent. 
 
We also allow the use of social media during meetings, which helps to bring the issues 
discussed to a wider audience. 
 
Members of the public, members of the press and councillors are hereby informed that, in 
attending the meeting, you may be captured on film. If you have a particular problem with this, 
please contact us so we can discuss how we may accommodate you at the meeting. 
 
 

Use of mobile phones 
 

To minimise disturbance to others attending the meeting, please switch off your phone or other 
mobile device or turn it onto silent or vibrate mode. 
 

Thank you 



 

 
Hinckley Hub • Rugby Road • Hinckley • Leicestershire • LE10 0FR 

Telephone 01455 238141 • MDX No 716429 • Fax 01455 251172 • www.hinckley-bosworth.gov.uk 
 

AUDIT COMMITTEE -  19 JANUARY 2022 
 

A G E N D A 
 

1.   APOLOGIES AND SUBSTITUTIONS  

2.   MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING (Pages 1 - 4) 

 To confirm the minutes of the meeting held on 24 November 2021 

3.   ADDITIONAL URGENT BUSINESS BY REASON OF SPECIAL CIRCUMSTANCES  

 To be advised of any additional items of business which the Chairman decides by reason 
of special circumstances shall be taken as matters of urgency at this meeting (to be taken 
at the end of the agenda) 

4.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 To receive verbally from members any disclosures which they are required to make in 
accordance with the Council’s code of conduct or in pursuance of Section 106 of the Local 
Government Finance Act 1992. This is in addition to the need for such disclosure to 
be also given when the relevant matter is reached on the agenda. 

5.   QUESTIONS  

 To hear any questions received in accordance with Council Procedure Rule 12. 

6.   INTERNAL AUDIT ANNUAL REPORT & ANNUAL HEAD OF INTERNAL AUDIT OPINION 
FOR FINANCIAL YEAR 2020/21 (Pages 5 - 22) 

 To inform members of the internal audit opinion for the financial year 2020/21 

7.   LEISURE SERVICES CONTRACT (Pages 23 - 32) 

 Report of the internal auditor 

8.   LEICESTERSHIRE REVENUE AND BENEFITS PARTNERSHIP TEST & TRACE 
SUPPORT GRANT PAYMENT SCHEME (Pages 33 - 44) 

 Report of the internal auditor 

9.   ANY OTHER ITEMS OF BUSINESS WHICH THE CHAIRMAN DECIDES HAVE TO BE 
DEALT WITH AS MATTERS OF URGENCY  

 As announced under item 3 above. 

10.   MATTERS FROM WHICH THE PUBLIC MAY BE EXCLUDED  

 To consider the passing of a resolution under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government 
Act 1972 excluding the public from the undermentioned item of business on the grounds 
that it involves the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in paragraphs 3 and 
10 of Schedule 12A of the 1972 Act. 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



-89 - 

HINCKLEY AND BOSWORTH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

AUDIT COMMITTEE 
 

24 NOVEMBER 2021 AT 6.30 PM 
 
 
PRESENT:   - Chairman 
 Cllr A Pendlebury – Vice-Chairman 
Cllr REH Flemming, Cllr C Ladkin, Cllr RB Roberts, Cllr BR Walker, Cllr P Williams and 
Cllr LJ Mullaney 
 
Members in attendance: Councillors Cllr KWP Lynch 
 
Officers in attendance: Ilyas Bham and Rebecca Valentine-Wilkinson 
 

243 APOLOGIES AND SUBSTITUTIONS  
 
Apologies for absence were submitted on behalf of Councillors D Cope, M Cook & H 
Williams with the following substitutions authorised in accordance with council procedure 
rule 10: 
 
Councillor L Mullaney for Councillor Hodgkins. 
 

244 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING  
 
It was moved by Councillor Fleming, seconded by Councillor P Williams and 

 
RESOLVED – the minutes of the meeting held on 25 August 2021 be 
confirmed as a correct record. 

 
245 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 
No interests were declared. 
 

246 ANNUAL AUDIT LETTER 2019/2020  
 
The external auditors presented the report following completion of the audit procedures 
for the year ended 31 March 2020. 
 
After a question by members, the external auditors confirmed that the final report would 
not come back to the meeting in January 2022, but the next meeting date after that 
which was 20 April 2022. 
 
It was moved by Councillor Walker seconded by Councillor Fleming and 
 
  RESOLVED – the report be noted. 
 

247 FINAL AUDIT RESULTS REPORT  
 
Members were updated on the report from the external auditor who presented the final 
audit conclusion for 2019/20. 
 
It was moved by Councillor Ladkin and seconded by Councillor Williams and  
 
  RESOLVED – the report be noted. 
 

Page 1

Agenda Item 2



 

-90 - 

248 AUDIT OF ACCOUNTS 2020/21  
 
It was confirmed by the external auditors that the draft statement of accounts for the year 
ended 31 March 20201 had not yet been completed due to rescheduling of the audit 
delivery timing. The Council had therefore not yet been able to publish the audited 
2020/21 final statement of accounts in line with the deadline of 30 September 2021. 
 
It was moved by Councillor P Williams seconded by Councillor Fleming and 
 
  RESOLVED – the report be noted. 
 

249 AUDIT PLANNING REPORT  
 
Members were updated on the report which set out the approach and scope for the 
external audit for 2020/2021. 
 
The external auditor confirmed the report summarised their initial assessment of the key 
risks that had driven the development of the audit and outlined the strategy in response 
to those risks. 
 
A member asked a question around the risks identified of fraud in revenue recognition in 
relation to COVID-19 grants.  The external auditors confirmed that this had been due to 
the significant amount of COVID-19 grant funding coming in to the council and the 
number of transactions going through agency relationships passing the money on to third 
parties. 
 
Another question was raised by members around the change in risk or focus around 
valuation and impairment of properties including council dwellings and the risks 
identified. 
 
It was confirmed that the council accounted for certain classes of property, plant and 
equipment at valuation. Council dwellings had also been subject to a degree of 
estimation and the external auditors had worked through an annual rolling programme. 
They confirmed that the leisure centre and the crescent had been valued annually as a 
key risk to the organisation and these rental figures went up and down each year.  They 
also confirmed that the commercial properties were looked at every year with only a 
proportion of the dwellings being looked at annually. 
 
It was moved by Councillor P Williams, seconded by Councillor Fleming and 
  

RESOLVED – the report be noted. 
 

250 INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT  
 
This report had provided members with an update on progress in delivering the internal 
audit plan. 
 
It was moved by Councillor Walker, seconded by Councillor Fleming and 
 
  RESOLVED – the report be noted. 
 
 

(The Meeting closed at 7.00 pm) 
 
 
 

 CHAIRMAN 

Page 2



 

-91 - 

 

Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank



Internal Audit Annual Report 
and Annual Head of Internal 
Audit Opinion 2020/21
Hinckley and Bosworth Borough Council

10 January 2022

Emily J Mayne

Head of Internal Audit

T:  0121 232 5309

E:  emily.j.mayne@uk.gt.com

Zoe Thomas

Internal Audit Manager

T:  0121 232 5277

E:  zoe.thomas@uk.gt.com

P
age 5

A
genda Item

 6

mailto:emily.j.mayne@uk.gt.com
mailto:zoe.thomas@uk.gt.com


Commercial in confidence

Contents

This report is confidential and is intended for use by the management and
directors of The Hinckley and Bosworth Borough Council. It forms part of

our continuing dialogue with you. It should not be made available, in whole
or in part, to any third party without our prior written consent. We do not
accept responsibility for any reliance that third parties may place upon this

report. Any third party relying on this report does so entirely at its own risk.
We accept no liability to any third party for any loss or damage suffered or
costs incurred, arising out of or in connection with the use of this report,

however such loss or damage is caused.

It is the responsibility solely of the Council's management and directors to
ensure there are adequate arrangements in place in relation to risk

management, governance, control and value for money.

1  Introduction 3

2 Internal audit summary 4

3 Summary of reports by overall opinion 8

4 Performance of Internal Audit 9

5  2020/21 Head of Internal Audit opinion                       10

6 Appendix 1 – Our assurance levels                            15

P
age 6



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP. 

The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) state that:

“The Chief Audit Executive (Head of Internal Audit) must deliver an annual internal audit opinion and report that can be used by the

organisation to inform its governance statement”

“The annual internal audit opinion must conclude on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the organisation’s framework of governance,

risk management and control”.

To meet the above requirements, this Annual Report summarises our conclusions and key findings from the internal audit work undertaken at

Hinckley and Bosworth Borough Council during the year ended 31 March 2021, including our overall opinion on Hinckley and Bosworth

Borough Council’s internal control system.

Acknowledgement

We would like to take this opportunity to thank all members of management and staff for the help, courtesy and co-operation extended to us

during the year.

Introduction

3

P
age 7



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP. 

Scope and responsibilities

It is management’s responsibility to establish a sound internal control system. The internal control system comprises the whole network of

systems and processes established to provide reasonable assurance that organisational objectives will be achieved, with particular reference

to:

• Risk management

• The effectiveness of operations

• The economic and efficient use of resources

• Compliance and applicable policies, procedures, laws and regulations

• Safeguards against losses, including those arising from fraud, irregularity or corruption; and

• The integrity and reliability of information and data

Internal audit

Internal Audit assists management by examining, evaluating and reporting on the controls in order to provide an independent assessment of

the adequacy of the internal control system. To achieve this, Internal Audit should:

• Analyse the internal control system and establish a review programme

• Identify and evaluate the controls which are established to achieve objectives in the most economic and efficient manger

• Report findings and conclusions and, where appropriate, make recommendations for improvement

• Provide an opinion on the reliability of the controls in the system under review; and

• Provide an assurance based on the evaluation of the internal control system within the organisation as a whole

Internal Audit Summary

4

P
age 8



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP. 

Good practice

In order to provide an annual assurance statement supporting the Governance Statement, we consider all of Hinckley and Bosworth Borough

Council activities and systems, as aligned to key risks, within the scope of our internal audit reviews.

Our internal audit plans are designed to provide the Audit Committee with assurance that Hinckley and Bosworth Borough Council internal

control system is effective in managing the organisation key risks and value for money is being achieved. Our plans are therefore linked to the

organisation’s corporate risk register.

The three-year Strategic Internal Audit Plan was agreed in consultation with senior management and formally approved by the Audit

Committee in July 2019.

Internal Audit coverage

The Internal Audit Plan comprises 130 days per annum. In March 2020, due to the impact of Covid-19, management requested that we

suspended all internal audit activity until further notice and we did not restart our work until the autumn of 2020. We undertook sufficient work

in 2019/20 to provide our opinion, with any outstanding days being included in the audit programme for the 2020/21 audit plan.

This impacted our delivery for 2020/21 and in discussion with management we reprofiled the three year plan, agreeing to deliver 150 days of

work in 2020/21. Due to changes in management priorities, mainly driven by the impact of Covid-19, there were some further changes to the

delivery as detailed later in the report.

Internal Audit planning

The Annual Internal Audit Plan is subject to revision throughout the year to reflect changes in your risk profile. We have planned our work so

that we have a reasonable expectation of detecting significant control weaknesses. However, internal audit can never guarantee to detect all

fraud or other irregularities and cannot be held responsible for internal control failures.

Management has specifically directed us to areas where controls and processes have been impacted by Covid-19 and where they consider

their greatest risks lay.

5

Internal Audit Summary (continued)

P
age 9



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP. 

There are three areas where we have not reported as planned:

Town centre recovery

This work was planned to be undertaken in 2020/21 and the work was scoped. Following this initial scoping, management concluded that the

time was not right for us to undertake the work as management has instigated a formal review in this area since our plan was drawn up and

the initial work scoped. As this was relatively late in the audit cycle we judged that we would not substitute other work. The days allocated to

this review have been used to support over-runs in other areas.

Housing voids

This work was disrupted in 2019/20 by the Covid-19 related suspension of our work. The work was nearing completion when we were

requested to cease activity.

We attempted to complete our work in 2020/21, however a number of the findings and the ways of working had, by necessity, been impacted

by the pandemic. Due to this, and the elapsed time since our sample testing was undertaken, we concluded that our findings, conclusions and

recommendations would not necessarily reflect the arrangements operating during 2020/21.

We therefore have not issued an assurance level for this report and will issue the report to management as an ‘advisory’ report. And findings,

conclusions and recommendations will be considered by management in their oversight and management of this area going forward.

6

Internal Audit Summary (continued)

P
age 10



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP. 

Cashless parking

This review was brought forward from the prior year and was included in the plan due to the implementation of a new system. Scoping of the

work identified that the number of controls for us to test were limited, and therefore, the relative risk associated with this area was also limited.

We have not therefore issued a detailed report, but agreed to summarise our findings as follows:

The council operates 17 car parks all of which have cashless parking capability and customers pay for their parking using machines operated

by a company called Metric. These machines produce monthly transactional reports which can be accessed by HBBC via an online portal. The

card transactions themselves are processed via Capita's income system which is used by HBBC for all card transactions income.

We identified two key controls:

1) a monthly reconciliation is completed by the Car Parks team between the general ledger and the Metric parking report. We obtained

reconciliations for 2020/21 and reperformed these for July 2020 and January 2021. We consider that the controls are appropriate and have

made the following recommendations, based upon our findings.

• Improvement point: Consideration should be given to setting a threshold above which variances will be formally investigated. This could be a

fixed percentage of monthly or cumulative income, or an absolute amount.

• Medium risk: It should be ensured that the monthly reconciliation between the Metric parking report and Capita card transaction report is

completed in a timely manner which was not deemed to be the case for 2021/22. The reconciliation should be signed and dated as

completed to evidence the timeliness of this control.

2) The second control is a rolling daily reconciliation between the Cash & Deposit book (all card based transactions detailed within the daily

Capita report, not just cashless parking) and bank by the Controls Accountant. This ensures that income recognised accurately reflects that

received by HBBC. There are no issues in relation to this control.

We concluded that overall the level of assurance is Significant assurance with some improvement required. We have discussed the

recommendations with management and they have agreed to consider implementing these going forward.

7

Internal Audit Summary (continued)

P
age 11



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP. 

Summary of reports by overall opinion

8

We have prepared a report for each of the internal audit reviews completed and presented these reports to the Audit Committee. Where

relevant, all reports contained management action plans detailing responsible officers and implementation dates. The reports were fully

discussed and agreed with management prior to submission to the Audit Committee.

The internal audit reports that have been issued in 2020/21 are summarised in the table below. The definitions used to provide conclusions 

on reports, and the risk assessment of individual actions are set out in Appendix 1.

Review Report conclusion No. of recommendations raised

High risk Medium risk Low risk Improvement

Financial systems
Partial assurance with improvement 

required
- 2 4 5

Risk management
Partial assurance with improvement 

required
- 3 4 -

Cashless parking Significant assurance with some 

improvement required

- 1 - 1

Revenues and benefits partnership Significant assurance No recommendations

Commercial property management Partial assurance with improvement 

required

3 3 1 1

Communications strategy Significant assurance with some 

improvement required

- - 1 1

Review of medium term financial 

plan

Partial assurance with improvement 

required

- 2 8 2

Housing voids Advisory

Town centre recovery Review withdrawn by Management No recommendations

Leisure contract management Significant assurance No recommendations

Total 3 11 18 10

P
age 12



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP. 

Performance of Internal Audit

9

Independence

PSIAS require us to communicate on a timely basis all facts and matters that may have a bearing on our independence.

We can confirm that the staff members involved in each 2020/21 internal audit review, including any work brought forward, were independent 

of Hinckley and Bosworth’s operational processes and their objectivity was not compromised in any way. 

An employee of Grant Thornton UK LLP has a close family member who is an employee of Hinckley and Bosworth Borough Council. This

employee has not or will not be involved in the internal audit, grant certification or any other services provided to the Council.

We can confirm that there are no significant facts or matters that impact on our independence as auditors that we are required or wish to draw 

to your attention.  

Conformance with Public Sector Internal Audit Standards

Based upon our ongoing assignment and client review processes, together with the results of any Quality Assurance inspections, we believe 
that we have complied with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards.

Quality control

Grant Thornton’s aim is to provide a service that not only meets the  Council's needs but also maintains consistently high standards. This is 
achieved through the following internal processes:

• Preparation of a detailed audit plan which is reviewed by the Head of Internal Audit prior to submission to the Audit Committee for approval;

• Regular review of progress against the plan to ensure we are delivering the work we have promised.  In 2019/20, we have not completed all 
audit work as required due to management’s decision to suspend all audit activities in March, due to the impact of Covid-19. 

• A tailored audit approach using a defined methodology and assignment control documentation which is subject to the firm’s rev iew protocol;

• The use of qualified, highly trained and experienced staff;

• The review of all audit files and reports by the Head of Internal Audit and Internal Audit Manager; and

• Reviews of a random sample of files by staff from other offices within the firm to ensure they comply with the Firm’s standards of technical 
excellence and client service.

P
age 13



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP. 10

Hinckley and Bosworth Borough Council

Basis of Opinion for the year ending 31 March 2021

This report is our annual summary of the internal audit work carried out for Hinckley and Bosworth Borough Council this year. All reports have 

been presented to the Audit Committee following their agreement with Management. All findings, if not formally reported have been 

summarised in this report.

Our internal audit work was carried out in accordance with the Grant Thornton Internal Audit methodology, which complies with the Public 

Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS). Our work was not designed to and therefore it does not comply with the International Framework for 

Assurance Engagements (IFAE) or International Standard on Assurance Engagements (ISAE) 3000. 

In carrying out our work we are required to comply with applicable ethical standards, including being independent from Hinckley and 

Bosworth Borough Council.

Respective roles and responsibilities

The Council is collectively accountable for maintaining a sound system of internal control and is responsible for putting in place arrangements

for gaining assurance about the effectiveness of that overall system.

The Annual Governance Statement (AGS) is an annual statement by the Accountable Officer, on behalf of the Council, setting out:

▪ how the individual responsibilities of the Accountable Officer are discharged with regard to maintaining a sound system of internal

control that supports the achievement of policies, aims and objectives;

▪ the purpose of the system of internal control as evidenced by a description of the risk management and review processes;

▪ the conduct and results of the review of the effectiveness of the system of internal control including any disclosures of significant control

failures together with assurances that actions are or will be taken where appropriate to address issues arising.

2020/21 Head of Internal Audit Opinion

P
age 14



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP. 11

Respective roles and responsibilities (continued)

The Head of Internal Audit is required to provide an annual opinion in accordance with the PSIAS, based upon and limited to the work 

performed, on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the Council’s risk management, control and governance processes (otherwise 

known as the system of internal control).

The purpose of the Head of Internal Audit’s Opinion is to contribute to the assurances available to the Accountable Officer and the Council, 

which underpin the Council’s own assessment of the effectiveness of internal control. This Opinion will in turn assist the Council in the 

completion of the Annual Governance Statement (AGS).

The Opinion does not imply that Internal Audit has reviewed all risks and assurances relating to the organisation. It is achieved through the 

delivery of a risk-based programme of compliance, assurance and advisory work, agreed with management and approved by the Audit 

Committee.

Operational assurance

The emergence of Covid-19 pandemic in early 2020 and the restrictions on movement and social distancing advised by the Government in 

March 2020 have impacted on the scope of the audit work undertaken and the delivery of the work as initially planned. In consultation with 

management the risk based audit plan was modified from that originally agreed and the reviews have been limited to those considered by  

management to be of significant risk in the context of the pandemic, resulting in a relatively narrow focus to our work. This has been 

considered in the forming of our Head of Internal Audit Opinion.

. 

2020/21 Head of Internal Audit Opinion

P
age 15



Commercial in confidence

1212

2020/21 Head of Internal Audit Opinion

Overall reporting

Eight internal audit reports have been issued in 2020/21, of which: 

• 2 reports were issued with significant assurance

• 2 reports were issued with significant assurance with some improvement 

required

• 4 reports were issued with partial assurance with improvement required

The range of individual opinions arising from risk-based audit 

assignments reported throughout the year

The partial assurance opinion reports were on two of the core review areas; 

risk management and financial systems. The other two partial assurance 

reports related to risk-based audit assignments which were the review of 

the medium term financial plan and commercial property management. 

Here we identified weaknesses which put system objectives at risk.

Audit recommendations

In 2020/21 we made 42 recommendations, 3 high risk, 11 medium risk, 18 

low risk and 10 improvement points.

As part of the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards, I am required to 

consider the appropriateness of the organisation’s response to Internal 

Audit recommendations and action subsequently implemented. 

We report to Audit Committee meetings management’s progress in 

implementing internal audit recommendations. It is the responsibility of 

management to ensure that recommendations are implemented within 

agreed timescales to mitigate identified risk. Our role is to request updates 

on progress and assess evidence provided. During 2020/21 and beyond we 

have continually requested updates and evidence from management to all 

outstanding high and medium risk recommendations. 

4 4

1

6

15

3

1

15

4

5

1

61

3

1

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

implemented not yet due not agreed not implemented/
insufficient evidence

Improvement Low Medium High

It is important that management takes greater responsibility for 

recommendation tracking and provides appropriate evidence to support 

implementation going forward. This will provide the Audit Committee with 

assurance that appropriate action is being taken to address identified 

weaknesses in controls.

As summarised graphically below, we have not received an update on all 

recommendations and for a number, management has confirmed that 

actions have been implemented but limited or no evidence has been 

supplied to support the position. We are therefore not in a position to 

confirm whether these recommendations have been fully implemented. 

P
age 16



Commercial in confidence

1313

2020/21 Head of Internal Audit Opinion

Opinion

The basis of our opinion is an assessment of the range of individual 

assurances arising from our risk-based internal audit assignments 

that have been reported throughout the year. My Opinion is provided 

primarily on the basis of work undertaken to date within the Internal 

Audit Plan for the 2020/21 financial year and is limited to the scope of 

work that has been agreed with Council management and as shared 

with the Audit Committee, detailed within final reports. This 

assessment has taken account of the relative materiality of the areas 

reviewed.

Any opinion level provided must, therefore, be considered in terms of 

the agreed review scope only and no inference may be assumed by 

the Council or other users of my report, that this opinion extends to 

the adequacy of controls and processes outside the scope agreed. 

Our assurance levels are 

shown at appendix 1.

. 

“Overall, significant assurance with some improvement required can be given on 

the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the organisation’s framework of governance, 

risk management and control. 

We identified weaknesses in our reviews of risk management and core financial 

controls, both of which are core areas. We also identified weaknesses in the 

arrangements for commercial property management and medium term financial 

planning. Our follow up of progress in implementing the high and medium risks identified 

from these reviews found that sufficient progress has been made on the medium and 

high risk recommendations to allow greater assurance to be provided in our opinion. 

The Council should place greater emphasis on the implementation of recommendations, 

with greater ownership, a focus on the greatest areas of risk, and ensuring sufficient 

evidence is provided to demonstrate implementation and embeddedness.”

Risk 
Management

Internal 
Control

Implementation 
of agreed audit 

actions

Governance

Opinion continued

The basis of our opinion is as follows:

• An assessment of the design and operation of the underpinning 

Assurance Framework and supporting processes; and

• An assessment of the range of individual assurances arising 

from our core and risk-based internal audit assignments that 

have been reported throughout the year. This assessment has 

taken account of the relative materiality of these areas.

• The extent to which you have responded to audit 

recommendations. 

Our overall opinion for the period 1 April 2020 to 31 March 2021 is 

that based on the scope of reviews undertaken and the sample 

tests completed during the period, that:

P
age 17



Appendices

P
age 18



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP. 

Appendix 1 – Our assurance levels

15

Rating Description

Overall, we have concluded that, in the areas examined, the risk management activities and controls are suitably designed to achieve the risk 

management objectives required by management.

These activities and controls were operating with sufficient effectiveness to provide significant assurance that the related risk management 

objectives were achieved during the period under review.

Might be indicated by no weaknesses in design or operation of controls and only IMPROVEMENT recommendations.

Overall, we have concluded that in the areas examined, there are only minor weaknesses in the risk management activities and controls 

designed to achieve the risk management objectives required by management.

Those activities and controls that we examined were operating with sufficient effectiveness to provide reasonable assurance that the related 

risk management objectives were achieved during the period under review.

Might be indicated by minor weaknesses in design or operation of controls and only LOW rated recommendations.

Overall, we have concluded that, in the areas examined, there are some moderate weaknesses in the risk management activities and

controls designed to achieve the risk management objectives required by management. 

Those activities and controls that we examined were operating with sufficient effectiveness to provide partial assurance that the related risk 

management objectives were achieved during the period under review.

Might be indicated by moderate weaknesses in design or operation of controls and one or more MEDIUM or HIGH rated recommendations.

P
age 19



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP. 

Appendix 1 – Our assurance levels (cont’d)

16

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 20



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP. |

‘Grant Thornton’ refers to the brand under which the Grant Thornton member firms provide assurance, tax and advisory services to their clients and/or refers to one or more member firms, 

as the context requires. Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL).GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. GTIL and each 

member firm is a separate legal entity. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL does not provide services to clients . GTIL and its member firms are not agents of, and do not 

obligate, one another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions.

grantthornton.co.uk

P
age 21



T
his page is intentionally left blank



P
age 23

A
genda Item

 7

mailto:emily.j.mayne@uk.gt.com
mailto:Zoe.Thomas@uk.gt.com
mailto:matt.d.lee@uk.gt.com


Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 24



Commercial in confidence

•

P
age 25



Commercial in confidence

P
age 26



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

P
age 27



P
age 28



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 29



Commercial in confidence

P
age 30



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 31



P
age 32



Leicestershire Revenue and Benefits 
Partnership 

Emily Mayne

Director

T: 0121 232 5309

E emily.j.mayne@uk.gt.com

Zoe Thomas

Internal Audit Manager

T: 0121 232 5277

E: zoe.thomas@uk.gt.com

Wendy Jefferies

Public Sector Counter Fraud Manager, Audit

E: wendy.jefferies@uk.gt.com

Test and Trace Support Grant Payment 
Internal Audit

October 2021

P
age 33

A
genda Item

 8

mailto:emily.j.mayne@uk.gt.com
mailto:zoe.thomas@uk.gt.com
mailto:wendy.jefferies@uk.gt.com


Commercial in confidence

1  Executive Summary 3

2 Detailed Findings and Conclusions 5

3 Appendices                                                  7

This report is confidential and is intended for use by the management and directors of

Leicestershire Revenues & Benefits Partnership. It forms part of our continuing

dialogue with you. It should not be made available, in whole or in part, to any third

party without our prior written consent. We do not accept responsibility for any

reliance that third parties may place upon this report. Any third party relying on this

report does so entirely at its own risk. We accept no liability to any third party for any

loss or damage suffered or costs incurred, arising out of or in connection with the use

of this report, however such loss or damage is caused.

It is the responsibility solely of the Council’s management and directors to ensure

there are adequate arrangements in place in relation to risk management,

governance, control and value for money.

Report distribution:

For action:

▪ Sally O’Hanlon, Head of Leicestershire Revenues 

& Benefits Partnership 

• Storme Coop, Benefits Operational Manager

• Bonnie Kipling, Senior Benefits Officer 

Responsible Executives:

▪ Julie Kenny, Director (Corporate Services)

Contents

P
age 34



© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP. 3

Background

Claiming financial support under the Test and Trace Support Payment 

Scheme

The £500 Test and Trace Support Payment is for people on low incomes who 

have to self isolate due to coronavirus (Covid-19). Individuals may be eligible if 

they are employed or self-employed, cannot work from home, and will lose income 

as a result. Individuals can only apply if they’ve been told to self-isolate by NHS 

Test and Trace, notified to self-isolate by the NHS Covid-19 app, or they are the 

parent or guardian of a child who has been told to self-isolate. 

Government guidance sets out in what circumstances it is possible to claim the 

payment and is clear about the criteria that should be met. The scheme is 

administered by local councils and the Leicestershire Revenues & Benefits 

Partnership is responsible tor administering the scheme locally.

In addition to the national scheme, the Partnership operates a local scheme which 

allows for discretionary payments to be made. The Partnership has set out the 

criteria that must be met to receive a discretionary payment. 

As at 30th September 2021, the Partnership has received 1,420 applications for 

Test and Trace Support Payments. Of these 583 (496 main scheme and 87 

discretionary) were successful in their application, receiving £500.00 each. Total 

payments made to date by the Partnership (30th September 2021) is £291,500.

In administering the scheme, the partnership is responsible for:; 

• Assessing applications to determine whether the eligibility criteria has been 

met;

• Communicating with applicants on whether they have met the eligibility criteria;      

and 

• Making payments to eligible applicants.

Objectives

Our review focussed on the following potential risks:

• The partnership is making payments to individuals who do not meet the 

prescribed eligibility criteria; and

• Applications and payments are not being processed accurately or in a timely 

manner. 

Limitations in scope

Our findings and conclusions will be limited to the risks identified above. The scope 

of this audit does not allow us to provide an independent assessment of all risks 

and controls across the entire management of the risk management process. 

Where sample testing is undertaken, our findings and conclusions will be limited to 

the sample tested only. Please note that there is a risk that our findings and 

conclusions based on the sample may differ from the findings and conclusions we 

would reach if we tested the entire population from which the sample is taken.

This report does not constitute an assurance engagement as set out under ISAE 

3000.

1. Executive Summary

P
age 35



© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP. 4

Conclusion

We have reviewed the processes and controls around the Test and Trace Support 

Payment Scheme and have concluded that the processes have provided a 

SIGNIFICANT LEVEL OF ASSURANCE. This was confirmed through testing in 

specific areas of the Partnership and through discussions with management. No 

recommendations have been raised.

The Test and Trace Support Payment Scheme was established in September 

2020. As such it is a relatively new system. Our testing has focused on the areas 

of the scheme which present the greatest risk. The controls tested are set out in 

our Audit Planning Brief.

We have reviewed the Partnership assessment criteria documentation for both the 

Main Scheme and Discretionary Payments Scheme and found this to be 

consistent with HM Government guidance. 

The Test and Trace Process Map provides a process for the main scheme and 

incorporates a checklist of requirements in line with the eligibility criteria. The 

discretionary scheme mirrors this process. 

There is a defined team with separation of duties between the assessment, 

approval, bank checks and payment of applications. 

We undertook sample testing in the walkthrough meeting with Partnership staff 

and no anomalies were identified. 

A further 10% sample was reviewed focussing on the criteria and payments. The 

single finding was, of the 59 additional claims sampled, 1 payment was made 

outside of the 3 day limit. This was followed up with the Partnership and confirmation 

received that the approved claim had been omitted from the payment run. The 

matter was immediately rectified after the applicant made contact.

SIGNIFICANT ASSURANCE (NO RECOMMENDATIONS)
Objectives / Risks reviewed

Assurance rating and number 

of recommendations

The partnership is making payments to 

individuals who do not meet the prescribed 

eligibility criteria. 

Significant assurance 

(no recommendations)

Applications and payments are not being 

processed by the partnership accurately or in 

a timely manner. 

Significant assurance 

(no recommendations)

1. Executive Summary

Recommendations

We have raised 0 recommendations. 

Acknowledgement

We would like to take this opportunity to thank the Partnership staff for their co-

operation during this internal audit review.

High Med Low Imp

Detailed findings - - - -

P
age 36



© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP. 

Findings and Conclusion

The testing for this risk incorporated two areas; 

- A review of the HM Government guidance and all internal guidance documents held within the Partnership.

- A review of the design and operation of the Partnership’s controls for administering the scheme. 

We have seen that there is a robust process in place within the Partnership to ensure that all applications are assessed in accordance with the HM Government 

guidance. 

• Management outlined the robust two week preparation process undertaken within the Partnership at the commencement of the scheme to ensure that pre-payment 

checks were undertaken and evidenced for all applications. The levels of pre-payment checks was stated to be over and above the guidance issued by the 

Department of Health. 

• The team is organised with assessors, all experienced benefits officers, divided into the main scheme, the discretionary scheme with a few hybrid team members to 

cover absences. 

• There is a defined team structure which ensures separation of roles between the assessment, approval, bank checks and payment of applications. 

• There is an internal training pack, assessor checklist and claim application flowchart outlining the eligibility criteria for assessors. We have noted that separate 

checklists are in place and applicable for the main and discretionary payments schemes. 

• The online application process rejects applications which do not meet the criteria. 

• Three months ago all Test and Trace Support Payment claim applications began to be logged and processed via Ascendent. This system has all the required checks 

in-built preventing fraudulent applications and it also issues responses via a generic email and is thus not reliant on personal email inboxes being monitored by the 

assessors. The only local input required is a check of the Test and Trace ID (where applicable) which is undertaken using the Public Health England eligibility 

checker. All follow up checks are undertaken via Ascendent, providing a robust and time efficient system. 

• Currently 3 team members are training on Ascendant; other officers have the knowledge base should there be a requirement to increase resources. 

• Current guidance is that the scheme has been extended to March 2022. 

• Internal briefing documents ensure that team members are aware of changes implemented as the Test and Trace Support Payment scheme develops. 

Conclusion

Our work identified that the Partnership had adopted guidance in line with HM Government guidance and had appropriate controls in place to implement 

this guidance.

2.1 Low The Partnership is making payments to individuals who do not meet the prescribed eligibility criteria. 

2. Detailed Findings & Conclusions

5

P
age 37



© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP. 

Findings and Conclusion

The Test and Trace Process Map is a flowchart clearly outlining the application form process from start to end. This flowchart is comprehensive and outlines 

responsibilities within the team and deadlines to be adhered to. 

The assessment checklist mirrors the monitoring spreadsheet maintained for each of the three local authorities. Within the folder structure there is a separate folder for 

each local authority and within that a separate folder set up for each team member which ensures a complete audit trail per application. 

Walkthrough testing was undertaken with key staff to review the processing procedure. During this, a test of key controls for a sample of one main scheme and one 

discretionary scheme application was reviewed for each of the three local authorities within the Partnership. These 6 applications were all evidenced as being assessed, 

approved and paid within the national or locally agreed eligibility criteria. All payments were made accurately and in a timely way.

A further 10% sample check was undertaken of paid claims across the main scheme and discretionary scheme for each local authority within the Partnership. These 

attribute based tests were designed to assess whether the following application controls were adhered to;

• the application submission date met the time limit; 

• the applicant met the residency criteria;

• where applicable, the T&T ID had been verified;

• the payment was made to a bank account matching the applicant’s name;

• the payment was made by the partnership within 3 working days of the application approval.

We found 100% compliance with those controls designed and implemented by Partnership management to manage the Test & Trace support system with one exception 

as follows: 

• of the 59 claims sampled, 1 payment was made outside of the 3 day limit.  However when this was followed up with management it was confirmed that the approved 

claim had been received in time but had been omitted from the payment run. The matter was immediately rectified after the applicant made contact. 

We concluded that this was an oversight, immediately addressed once identified. As such, we have not raised a recommendation or improvement point. 

Conclusion

Our testing has enabled us to conclude that in the majority of cases, applications and payments are being proceeded by the Partnership accurately and in a 

timely manner. 

2.2 Low Applications and payments are not being processed by the Partnership accurately or in a timely manner. 

2. Detailed Findings & Conclusions

6

P
age 38



3. Appendices

P
age 39



© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP. 

Appendix 1 – Staff involved and documents 
reviewed

8

Staff involved

▪ Sally O’Hanlon, Head of Leicestershire Revenues & Benefits Partnership

▪ Storme Coop, Benefits Operational Manager

▪ Emma Weaver, Benefits Team Leader

▪ Bonnie Kipling, Senior Benefits Officer

Documents reviewed

▪ HM Government Guidance – claiming financial support under the Test and 

Trace Support Payment Scheme 

▪ NHS Test and Trace Support Payment – Processing Applications Training 

Pack (undated) 

▪ Briefing Note Test and Trace Payment Scheme – Discretionary Element 

(March 2021)

▪ Briefing Note Test and Trace Payment Scheme – fundamental changes  

(March 2021)

▪ Test and Trace Support Payment Scheme Assessor Checklist Main 

Scheme (v1.2)

▪ Test and Trace Process Map

▪ Test and Trace Support Payment Scheme – Assessor Checklist 

(Discretionary Scheme)

▪ Monitoring spreadsheets; Hinkley and Bosworth Borough Council, 

Harborough District Council and North West Leicestershire District Council 

▪ Ascendant system reports

▪ Test and Trace Expenditure Sheets 

P
age 40



© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP. 

Appendix 2 – Our assurance levels

Rating Description

Significant 
assurance

Overall, we have concluded that, in the areas examined, the risk management activities and controls are suitably designed to achieve the risk 
management objectives required by management.

These activities and controls were operating with sufficient effectiveness to provide significant assurance that the related risk management 
objectives were achieved during the period under review.

Might be indicated by no weaknesses in design or operation of controls and only IMPROVEMENT recommendations.

Significant 

assurance with 

some 

improvement 
required

Overall, we have concluded that in the areas examined, there are only minor weaknesses in the risk management activities and controls 
designed to achieve the risk management objectives required by management.

Those activities and controls that we examined were operating with sufficient effectiveness to provide reasonable assurance that the related 
risk management objectives were achieved during the period under review.

Might be indicated by minor weaknesses in design or operation of controls and only LOW rated recommendations.

Partial assurance 

with improvement 
required

Overall, we have concluded that, in the areas examined, there are some moderate weaknesses in the risk management activities and controls 
designed to achieve the risk management objectives required by management. 

Those activities and controls that we examined were operating with sufficient effectiveness to provide partial assurance that the related risk 
management objectives were achieved during the period under review.

Might be indicated by moderate weaknesses in design or operation of controls and one or more MEDIUM or HIGH rated recommendations.

No assurance Overall, we have concluded that, in the areas examined, the risk management activities and controls are not suitably designed to achieve the 
risk management objectives required by management. 

Those activities and controls that we examined were not operating with sufficient effectiveness to provide reasonable assurance that the related 
risk management objectives were achieved during the period under review

Might be indicated by significant weaknesses in design or operation of controls and several HIGH rated recommendations.

The table below shows the levels of assurance we provide and guidelines for how these are arrived at.  We always exercise professional judgement in determining 

assignment assurance levels, reflective of the circumstances of each individual assignment. 

9

P
age 41



© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP. 

Appendix 2 – Our assurance levels (cont’d)

The table below describes how we grade our audit recommendations. 

Rating Description Possible features

High Findings that are fundamental to the management of risk in the business area, 

representing a weakness in the design or application of activities or control that 
requires the immediate attention of management

▪ Key activity or control not designed or operating 

effectively

▪ Potential for fraud identified

▪ Non-compliance with key procedures / 

standards
▪ Non-compliance with regulation

Medium Findings that are important to the management of risk in the business area, 

representing a moderate weakness in the design or application of activities or control 

that requires the immediate attention of management

▪ Important activity or control not designed or 

operating effectively 

▪ Impact is contained within the department and 

compensating controls would detect errors

▪ Possibility for fraud exists

▪ Control failures identified but not in key controls

▪ Non-compliance with procedures / standards 
(but not resulting in key control failure)

Low Findings that identify non-compliance with established procedures, or which identify 

changes that could improve the efficiency and/or effectiveness of the activity or 
control but which are not vital to the management of risk in the business area. 

▪ Minor control design or operational weakness 

▪ Minor non-compliance with procedures / 
standards

Improvement Items requiring no action but which may be of interest to management or which 
represent best practice advice

▪ Information for management

▪ Control operating but not necessarily in 
accordance with best practice

10

P
age 42



© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP. 

‘Grant Thornton’ refers to the brand under which the Grant Thornton member firms provide assurance, tax and advisory services to their clients and/or refers to one or more member firms, 

as the context requires. Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL).GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. GTIL and each 

member firm is a separate legal entity. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL does not provide services to clients. GTIL and its member firms are not agents of, and do not 

obligate, one another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions.

grantthornton.co.uk

P
age 43



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of previous meeting
	6 Internal Audit Annual report & Annual Head of Internal Audit opinion for financial year 2020/21
	7 Leisure Services Contract
	8 Leicestershire Revenue and Benefits Partnership Test & Trace Support Grant Payment Scheme

